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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Indepenclent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Jindal Saw Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accorlpanying standalone financial statenrents of Jinclal Sarv Limited ("the Cornpany"),
wlriclr colnprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March gr,2024, ancl the Stal.rdalone Statement of Profit
and Loss (inclucling Other Comprehensive Incorne), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity ancl the
Startdalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, altcl notes to the standalone financial staternents,
including naterial accouutiug policy information and other explanatory information and which include the
financial stateutents of Sarnruddhi Employees Trust (the "Trust") for the year endecì on that date.

2 Itl ottr opinion artd to the best of our infonnation and accorcling to tl.re explanations given to us, the aforesaid
stanclaìone financial statelnents give the information required by the Cornpalries Act, zo13 ("the Act") in the
lllallller so requirecl and give a true and fair view in conformity with tl.re accounting principles generally
acceptecl ir.r India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March St,2o24,ancl total comprehensive incorne
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive incorne), changes in equity and its casìr flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. Wc c:otrclttctccl otrl auclit itr accolclancc lvith thc Standalcls ol .A.uclitirrg (SAs) speciliecl urrclel sccLiorr r+g(ro)
of the Act. Ottr responsibilities under those Standarcls are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Auclit of the Standalone Financial Statements" sectior.t of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charlered Accoulttants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our auclit of the standalone financial statements
ttnder the provisious of the Act and the Rules thereunder, ancl we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidetrce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

4. Key audit rnatters are those tìlatters tl.rat, in our professionaljudger.r.rent, rvere of urost significance in our ¿rudit
of the standalone fìnar-rcial statements of the current period. These l.natters were addressed in the colttext of
our audit of the stanclalone financial staternents as a whole and in forming our opinion thereor.r, and we clo not
provide a separate opinior.r on these ntatters.
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Key audit matter:

4.1 Assessment of the carrying value of investment in and loans grant€d to a subsidiary, Jindal
ITF Limited [Refer to note 63 to the Standalone Financial Staternentsl

Description of Key Audit Matter:

Tlre Corrrpany has an investr.nent of Rs. 7o,242.66 laklis and has advanced loans aggregating Rs. 155,c,42.22
laklrs to its subsidiary, Jinclal ITF Limited (the 'subsidiary') as at March 3r,2024.

The subsidiary had entered into a contract in the financial year 2ol5-16 with a public sector undeftaking
('PSU') for transporting irnported coal to one of the PSU's power generatir.rg stations. The contract was for a
period of seveu years and the subsidiary was the sole transpofter and accorclingly, hacl rnade significant
investl¡ents to develop the facility. The contract had a clause for compensation in case the supply was lesser
than the miuimuu guaranteed quantity ('MGQ') rnentioned in the contract ar.rcl had specific clauses to be
adherecl to b¡' both the parties þefore termi'ating the contract.

The PSU stopped taking the supplies during the first year of operation and refused to pay cornpensation
towards MGQ and terminated the contract subsequently. The matter was referred to arbitration where the
arbitrator hacl awarded an interim award aurounting to Rs. 35,63r.r8 lakhs in favour of the subsidiary relating
to first 2 years of MGQ which was paid bythe PSU, against an equivalent amount of bank guarantee furnished
by the subsidiary. Subsequentìy, the arbitrator issued the final order in favour of the subsidiary awarding Rs.
189,ro8 lakhs plus interest and applicable taxes.

The PSU filed an appeal with Hon'ble High Court of Delhi against the final arbitration order. The Hon'ble High
Cottft passed an interim order directing the PSU to pay Rs. So,ooo lakhs as an interim compensation which
was paid by tlie PSU against an equivalent amount of bank guarantee furnished by the subsidiary. Currentìy,
the matter is uuder litigation and pending before the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. The management, in
consultation with their legal counsel on the likely outcorne of the case, has assessed that the carrying amount
of investments in and loans grantecl to the subsidiary including interest thereon, are good and recoverable.

This has been cletermiued as a key audit matter as the investment made, and loans granted are material to the
Standalone Financial Statements and the subsidiary is currently l.raving insignificant operations. Fufther, the
recovety of iuvestt.nent and loan granted depends on the ultimate recovery of the remaining cornpensation
from the PSU by tlie subsidiary.

llow our audit addressed the key audit matter:

We perfon.necl the following procedures:

Understoocl aud evaluated the design and perforr.ned testing of operating effectiveness of controls over
recognitior.r and assessment of recoverability of the investrrent ir.l and the loans given to the subsidiary.
Obtainecl an understanding of the rratter and enqnired about updates over the legal case and the
ploceedings that took place during the year.
Evaluated appropriateness of the accounting policy of the Cornpany in respect of impairment assessr.neltt
of equity iuvestments and loans given.
Perused the coutract betweeu the subsidiary ancl the PSU to corroborate the mattel's stated in the appeal
and cletaiìs of the claim filed by the subsicliary r,r'ith the Arbitration Tribunal ancl the final arbitration order
issued in this regard.

a

a

a

a
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Evaluatecl the recoverability ofthe said loans and investments considering the arbitration order decided
in favour of the subsidiary.
Evaluated the opinion obtainecl from the Company's external legal counsel on likely orìtcone of the case
which supports the Cornpany's assessment about recoverability of the said loan and investment balances.
Evaluated the appropriateness of presentation and adequacy of the disclosures made in the standalone
financial statements.

Basecl ou the procedures above, the management's assessment of the canying value of the investrnent and
loans in the said subsidiary was considered to be reasonable.

4.2 Appropriateness of Accounting for Business Combinations during the year [Refer to note 6r
to the Standalone Financial Statementsl.

Description of Key Audit Matter¡

Dtrlirrg the year, the Company has acquired (i) Sathavahar.ìa Ispat Limitecl ("SIL") on April 26,2c23 pursuant
to the resolution plan under the Insolvency and Bankrnptcy Code ("IBC") approved by the National Company
Law Trilrunal ("NCLT") vide its Order datecl March Jr,2023, ancl (ii) two subsidiaries, namely, Jindal Quality
Tubular Limited ("JQTL") and Jindal Tubular India Lin-rited ("JTIL") and one associate, narnely Jindal
Fittirrgs Lirnited ("JFL") with effect from April t, 2c22 pulsuant to the composite scherne of amalgamation
("Sclreme") approved by the NCLT vide its Ortler dated March 2L,2024.

The acquisition of JTIL and JQTL has been accounted for as a business combination of entities under cornrnon
control, and the acquisition ofJFL and SIL has been accounted for in accordance with the acquisition lnethod
as prescribed under Ind AS ro3 'Busiuess Combinations'and in accordance with the Scherne.

Lt respect of acquisition of SIL and JFL, the managemellt engaged valuatiorl experls ("management's expefts")
to detertnine the fair values of assets acquired and ìiabilities assumed for the purpose of allocation of the
purchase price and determination of the resultant Goodwill/ Capital Resen'e as on the clate of acquisition.

We considered the appropriateness of accounting for the above business combinatiolls as a key audit matter
due to the following:
. Cotnplexity of the above transactions and the related accounting treatment as per the applicable

accounting standards;
. Significant ruanagenent estimation and use of assurnptions required in the determination of fair values

of the assets acquired and liabilities assurned, and the computation of the resulting Goodwill/ Capital
Resen'e.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

We performecl the follou,ing procedures

o Ur.rclerstood and evaluated the design and tested the operatir-rg effectiveness of the Company's controls
over the acconnting for business combinations.

o Read the resolutior.r plan and the Scheme, as applovecl by the NCLT, to obtain an understanding of the
business col¡bination transactions ancl to assess the appropriateness of the accountir.rg treatment.

o Evaluated the appropriateness of the Corrpany's accounting policy for accour.rting for business
corrbinations.

r Assessed the indepenclence and colllpetence of the managelìlent's experts.
o Read the vahration leports of the managenlent's experts and with the involvement of auclitor's expert,

assessecl the appropriateuess of the valuation methodology ancl key trssurnptions such as cliscount rate,
long-terur gror+.th rates and weight average cost of capital.

a

a

o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mernbers of Jindaì San'Lirnited
Report on Audit of the Standaìone Finar.rcial Staternents

Page 4 of 7

Evaluated the applopriateness of accounting treatn.ìent and disclosures made by the Company for these
business cornbinations in accorclance with the requiren.rents of Ind AS ro3, and the Scheme .

Based on the above audit procedures, accouuting for business colilbinations during the year was considered
to be reasonable.

Other Information

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other infonnation. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual report, but cloes not include the financial statements ancl our auditor's
leport thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements cloes not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, onr responsibility is to read the other inforn.ration
aud, it.t doing so, consider whether the other inforrnation is rnaterially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be rnaterially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclucle that there is a l.naterial misstaternent of this other information,
we are required to repoft that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone fïnancial
statements

6. TheCoI.npany'sBoardofDirectorsisresponsibleforthernattersstatedinSectionl34(S)oftheActwitltrespect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial perfbrmance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accorclance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified uncler Section
r33 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; uraking
ìudgments and estitnates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implernentation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
cotnpleteness of the accountir.rg records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statelnents that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whetl.rer due to fraud or
error.

7. Lt preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Cor.npany's
ability to continue as a going concern, discÌosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
goiug concern basis of accounting unless uranagerllent either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operatiot.ts, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Tl.rose Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Cornpany's financial reporling process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

B. Our objectives are to obtaiu reasonable assurallce about u4lether the standalone financial statentents as a
whole are free fi'our material lrrisstaternent, r,r4rether due to fraud or error, ancl to issue an auditor's report that
inclucles our opiuiot.r. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that ar-r audit
couducted iu accordance with SAs u,ill always detect a material misstater.nent when it exists. Misstatements
catl arise frour fraud ol' error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasor.rably be expectecl to influence the ecor.lor.nic clecisiol.ls of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial stateluents.

a
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9. As paft of an audit in accot'dance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and rnaintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstateurent of the standalone financial statelnents, r,vhether due
to fraud or error, design aud perform audit proceclures resporìsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
r.uisstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

o Obtain an uuderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auclit procedr.lres that
are appropriate in the circurnstances. Uncìer Section r+S(SXi) of the Act, we are also resportsible for
expressing our opiuion on whether tËe Company has adequate internal financial controls wiih reference
to finar-rcial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness ofacconnting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¡ Conclude on the appropriateness of managernent's use of the going concern basis of accor.rnting and, based
on the audit eviclence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclucle that a
material unceftainty exists, we are required to clraw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statelnents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusiolls are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statenìents represent the underlying transactions and events in a
rnanner that achieves fair presentation,

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identifv during our audit.

1.1. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that rnay reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

L2. From the tnatters cotnmunicated with those charged with governaltce, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these rnatters in our auditor's repoft unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a lnatter should not be communicated in our repoft becanse the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

13. The standalone financial stateurents for the year ended March 3r,2c23 have been restated from April r,
2022to give effect of the composite scheme of amalgamation ("Scheme") as described in Note 6r.r of the
standaloue financial statements. The financial statements of Jindal Quality Tubular Lirnited, Jindal
Tubular India Limitecl and Jindal Fittings Lirnited (the transfelor companies) for the year ended March 3r,
zoz3, considered to give effect of the Scheme were auclited by other auditors, who vide their respectit'e
audit reports dated April 14,2c23 issued an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. We have
not auclited the restated figures for the year ended March gr,2o2S and relied upon tl.rese reports furnished
to us by the Management.
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We did not audit the financial staterìlents of the Trust included in the standalone financial statements of
the Company, which constitute total assets of Rs. r,o9r.6z lakhs and net assets of Rs. (6o.o6) lakhs as at
Marclr 3r,2024, total income of Rs. r3o.34 lakhs, net excess of expenditure over illconte of Rs. (r3o.97)
lakhs and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 32.27 lakhs for the year then ended. These financial statelnents
have beeu audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us by the managenent, and our
opinion ou the standalone financial staternents in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the Trust, is based solely on the repoft of such other auditor.

Our opinion is not moclified in respect of above matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

15. As requirecl by the Cornpanies (Auditor's Report) Order, zozo ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Governtneut of India in terms of sub-section (rr) of Section t4g of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statemeut on the l.natters specified in paragraphs 3 ancl 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

t6. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we repoft that:
(a) We have sought ancl obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were llecessaly for the purposes of our audit.

(b) ln our opiuion, proper books of accorult as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears frour our examination ofthose books, except for the matters stated in paragraph r6(hXvi)
below on reporting under Rule rr(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auclitors) Rules, zor4 (as amended)
("the Rules").

(c) The Standaìone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
courprehensive incotne), the Standalone Staternent of Changes in Bquity ancl the Standalone
Staternent of Cash Flows clealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opit-tiou, the aforesaid standalone financial staternents comply with the Accountitrg Standards
specified uncler Section r33 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3r, zoz4, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifiecl as on March 3r, zoz4, froln
being appointed as a clirector in terms of Section ß+(z) of the Act.

(1) With respect to the rnaintenance of accotu'rts and other matters connected therewith, reference is
made to our remarks in paragraph r6(h)(r'i) below on repofting under Rule rr(g) of the Rules.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to onr separate ReporÌ in
"Annexure 4".

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repoft in accordance with Rule n of
tlre Cornpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2024, in our opir.rior.r and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Courpar.ry has disclosed the irnpact of pencling litigations on its financial position in its financial
staten.ìeuts - Refer Note 5z to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Compauy has long-tem contracts as at March Bt, 2c24 for which there are no rlraterial
f'oreseeable ìosses. The Con.rpany did not ha'r'e any long-telru clerivative contracts as at March 3r,
2O24;

iii. There has been t.to clelay in transferring an.rounts, requirecl to be transferred, to the Investor
Educatiorl ancl Protection Fund by the Company except in lespect of clividend arnountir.rg to Rs. 97.r5



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of .Iindal Sal'Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Finar.rcial Staternents

Page 7 of 7

lakhs which according to the inforn'ration and explallation provided to us by the manageruent, has
been kept in abeyance due to legal cases [refer Note 30 to the standalone financial stater.nents];

ir'.(a) The tnanagernent has represented that, to tl-re best of its knowledge and belief, as clisclosed in Note
so(kxl) to the standalone financial statements, no fuuds have been advanced or loaned ol
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premiuln or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Cotr.rpany to or iu any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in r.t'riting ol otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest ir.l other persons or entities
iclentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultin-rate Beneficiaries;

(b) The lnallagement has representecl that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as clisclosed in the
Note 5o(k)(II) to the standalone financial statements, no funcls have been received by the
Cotnpauy frorn any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funcling Parties"), with
the uuclerstanding, whether recorded in r,r'riting or otherrvise, tl-rat tl-re Cornpany shall, whether,
clirectly or inclirectly, lend or invest in other persons or er.rtities iclentified in any tltanner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Uìtimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based ou such áudit procedures that we consiclered reasonable and appropriate in the
circuurstauces, nothing has cor'¡re to our notice that has causecl us to believe that the
representations uuder sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstaternent.

\¡. The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is ir-r compliance with Section rz3 of
the Act.

vi. Basecl olt our exarnination, which included test checks, the Company has a widely used ERP as its
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit traiì
(edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the financial year for all reìevant transactions
recorcled in the said software except (a) for rnodification made by ceftairl users with specific access;
ancl (b) that the audit trail (edit log) for certain information or data and at the clatabase level (which
records only the rnodified values) was enabled for a part of the year. During the course of performing
ottr proceclures, we did not notice any instance of auclit trail feature being tampered with, for the
period the audit trail feature was enabled. Also, refer note 47 to the standalone financial statements.

17. The Con-rpany has paicl/ provided for tnauagerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
nrandated by the pror.isions of Section tg7 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountant LLP
Firm Registration Number: orz754N/N5ooor6

v

Paftnel
Membership Nnl.nber: o57o84
UDIN : z4o 57 o I 4BKF O AZ44B4

Pìace: Gurugraru
Date: May 7,2c24
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section B of Sectiona4B of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jindal Saw
Limited ("the Company") as of March gr,2cr24 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for fnternal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to conpany's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating efiectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor'sjudgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the retiability of financial reporting and the preparalion of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (t) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (z) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (g) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to fïnancial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 9t,2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: orz754N/N5ooo16
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Sougata Mukherjee
artner

Membership Number: oS7oB4
UDIN: z4o 57 oB 4BKF O AZ4 q4

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 7,2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
ofaccount and records examined by us during the course ofour audit, and to the best ofour knowledge
and belief, we report that:

l. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note
5 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company, except for the following:

Description of
property

Gross
carrying
value (Rs
Lakhs)

Held in the
name of

Whether
heldby

promoter,
director or

their
relative or
employee

Period held
- indicate

range,
where

appropriate

Reason for not being
held in the name of the

Company

Freehold Land 1,95O.OO Multiple
third parties

No 10-15 years Change in land use not yet
approved by Government
Authorities.

Freehold Land t,6t7,o4 Sathavahana
Ispat Limited

No April26,
2023

Acquired through business
acquisition; change of
name in the name of the
Company is in process

Leasehold Land 33r.42 Sathavahana
Ispat Limited

No April26,
2023

Acquired through business
acquisition; change of
name in the name of the
Company is in process

Leasehold Land 2,743.t6 Jindal
Fittings
Limited

No April or,
2022

Acquired through business
acquisition; change of
name in the name of the
Company is in process
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(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, rg8B (as amended in zo16) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, r9B8 (+S of tgBB)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our
commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial
statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with
third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not roo/o or more in aggregate
for each class ofinventory and have been appropriately dealt with in the books ofaccount.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account. However, the Company has not filed quarterly returns or statements for the
quarter ended March gL, 2c.24 with the banks and accordingly, we are unable to comment on
such reconciliations as required by clause 3(iÐ(b).

iii. (a) Ihe Company has made investment in one company, granted unsecured loans to 346 ernployees
and stood guarantee to one subsidiary company. The Company during the year has not granted
any secured loans or advances in nature ofloans or provided security to any parties during the
year. The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date
with respect to such loans and guarantees to a subsidiary and to parties other than subsidiaries
and joint ventures are as per the table given below:

Guarantees
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Loans
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year

- Subsidiary

- Others

r9,303.98

715.t6

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect ofthe above

- Subsidiary

- Others

r9,303.98

497.68

(Also refer Note So(n) to the financial statements)
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(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments/guarantees/loans, the terms and conditions under which
such loans were granted/investments were made/guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
Company's interest.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated by the Company, except for the following instances, the parties are repaying
the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest as applicable.

Name of the entity Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

Due Date Ertent of
delay

Remarks (if any)

Vista Mining Pvt. Ltd. Monthly
installments
due on various
dates

Last day of
every month

Loan amounting Rs.
t,zz7.8t lakhs (fully
provided in eallier years),
written off during the
year

In respect of the following loans (also refer note 1B), no schedule for repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Therefore, in the absence of stipulation
of repayment terms, we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and
payment of interest.

Name of the entity Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

Due Date Remarks (if any)

Jindal ITF Limited L35,O42.22 Payable on demand Refer note 63 to the financial
statements

Ralael Holdings Limited 4,666.o8 Payable on demand Fully provided in the fìnancial
statements

(d) In respect of the loans/advances in nature of loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more
than ninety days as at March gr,2024.

(e) There were no loans /advances in nature of loans which fell due during the year and were
renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing
overdue loans/advances in nature ofloan.

(f) There were no loans/ advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year, including
to promoters/ related parties that were repayable on demand or without specifuing any terms or
period of repayment.

lv In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
cornplied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies Act, zor3 in respect of the loans
and investments made and guarantees provided by it and there were no securities provided under
aforesaid section. The Company has not provided any loans/guarantees/security and made any
investments to the parties covered under Section r85 of the Act.
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v During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections TJ,74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules
framed there under to the extent notified. In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 73, 74, 75
and 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent
notified, with regard to the deposits accepted from the public and transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund in earlier years. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal on the Company in respect
of the aforesaid deposits, the question of our commenting on whether the same has been
complied with or not does not arise.

vl.

vii. (a)

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
, 
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, labour welfare fund, income

)tax, duty of customs, cess, and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. Also, refer note 52 (iv) to the financial statements regarding management's
assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.

(b) There are no statutory dues of employees' state insurance and labour welfare fund which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute. 'l'he particulars of other statutory dues referred to in
sub-clause (a) as at March gt, 2c24 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are
as follows:

Name of the
statute

Nature ofdues Amount
(Rs. in
lakhs)*

Period to which
the amount

. relates**

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Custom Act,
t96z

Custom Dr"rty 538.oo zoo8-o9 High Court of Gujarat,
Ahmedabad

Custom Act,
196z

Custom Duty 174.67 2OL4-t5 CESTAT, Mumbai

Central Excise
&cT,7944

Excise r6t.43 zooT-o8 to 20o9-10 High Court of Gujarat,
Ahmedabad

Central Excise
Act, ].944

Excise 2.OO 2OO9-1O CESTAT, Mnmbai

Central Excise
AcI, L944

Excise 6s.gs February
March

2o1o to
zcJ12

Deputy
Commissioner,
Nashil<

Central Excise
AcT, t944

Excise 826.6t March,zott to
March, zor3

High Court of Glf arat,
Ahmedabad

Central Excise
Act, 1944

Excise 6ro.38 zooS-o9 to 2o09-r.o Cornmissioner
(Appeals), Rajkot

Central Excise
AcI tg44

Excise rog.36 2011-2O15 CESTAT, Bangalore

Central Excise
Act, 1944

Excise 6.gs zorT-t8 Col-nmissioner
(Appeals), Bellary
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Narne of the
statute

Nature of dues Amount
(Rs. in
lakhs)*

Period to which
the amount

relates**

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Bombay Stamp
Duty, 1958

Stamp Duty 1,20 2oL3-14 High Court of Gujarat,
Ahmedabad

Finance Act,
1994

Seryice Tax 70.27 December-zorz to
February-zo14

CESTATAhmedabad

Finance Act,
t994

Service Tax t65.4t 2Or2-13 to 2015-16 CESTAT, Ahmedabad

Finance Act,
1994

Service Tax s.6s 2007-08 Cornr.nissioner
(Appeals), Lucknow

Finance Act,
1994

Selice Tax 3.13 2oo8-og CESTAT, Mur.nbai

Finance Act,
L994

Service Tax 2.82 zooS-o9 CESTAT, Mulnbai

Fir.rance Act,
1994

Service Tax 1.98 2o12-r3 & zo15-r6 CESTAT, Aìrmeclal¡acl

Finance Act,
1994

Serice Tax 7.40 2ILS-L4 & zo15-r6 CESTAT, Ahmedabad

Finance Act,
Lgq4

Service Tax o.10 2Ot2-13 CESTAT, Ahmedabad

Finance Act,
r994

Service Tax 1O.O9 2olg-r4 & zor4-r5 Assistant
Comurissioner,
Nashik

Finance Act,
1994

Seruice Tax o.16 2O72-L3 to 2015-16 CESTAT, Ahnedabad

Finance Act,
L994

Seruice Tax 20.37 zot5-t6 CESTAT, Ahmedabad

Finance Act,
r994

Service Tax o.3g zor5-r6 CESTAT, Ahmeclabad

VATAct, UP
2008

Sales Tax 17.50 1996-97 High Court of
Allahabad

VATAct, UP
2c)C)8

Sales Tax 2.40 2oo4-o5 High Courl of
Alìahabacl

VATAct, UP
2008

Sales Tax L.42 t99t-92 High Court of
Allahabad

VATAct, UP
2008

Sales Tax 3.12 1995-96 High Court of
Allahabad

VATAct,
Andhra Pradesh

Sales Tax 1.o9 2010-11 Assistant
Commissioner,
Peddapuram

Gujarat VAT Act VAT 38.79 2OL2-L3 Cornr.nercial Tax,
Tribunal, Ahmedabad

Maìrarashtra
VATAct,2oo2

VAT 87.72 20t2-t3 Maharashtla Sales
Tax Tribunal, Mtur.rbai

AP VATAct,
zoo5 & CSTAct,
1956

Sales'fax 4o2.5L 2010-11 to 2016-
2077

AP VATAppellate
Tribunal,
Visakhapatnar.n &
High Court Andhra
Pradesh.

Kanlataka VAT
Act, eoo3 & CST
Act, 1956

Sales Tax o.77 20L6-17 The Cornmelcial Tax
Officer, Bellary,
Karnataka
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Name of the
statute

Nature ofdues Amount
(Rs. in
lakhs)*

Period to r¡'hich
the amount

relates**

Forum H'here the
dispute is pending

Karnataka VAT
Act, 2oo3 & CST
Act, 1956

Sales Tax 4.95 May zotT to October
2017

The Cor.nmercial Tax
Officer, Bellary,
Kalnataka

Goocls and
Service Tax Act,
2017

Goods and Service
Tax

2,20 zotT-t8 High Court of
Rajasthan

Goods aud
Service Tax Act,
20L7

Goods ancl Service
Tax

267.49 zotT-t8 Additional
Commissioner (A),
SGST, Ajmer,
Raiasthan

Goods aud
Service Tax Act,
20L7

Goods and Seruice
Tax

t6o.z4 202r-22 Dy. Commissioner
(A), Rajkot, Gujarat

Goods and
Service Tax Act,
2017

Goods and Selvice
Tax

41.35 2022-23 Dy. Commissioner
(A), Rajkot, Gujarat

Goods and
Selvice Tax Act,
20L7

Goods and Seruice
Tax

4ß69.70 zotT-t8 Joint Comn.rissioner
(Appeals), State Tax,
Maharashtra

Goods and
Seruice Tax Act,
20t7

Goods and Service
Tax

5,539.92 zorS-19 Adcl. Cornlnissioner
(Appeal) of SGST,
Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh

Go<¡ds and
Service Tax Act,
20L7

Goods and Service
Tax

7.47 zotT-tB & zorS-r9 Dy. Conrurissioner
(Appeal) of CGST,
Indore, Madhya
Pradesh

Goods and
Service Tax Act,
20L7

Goods and Service
Tax

L,537.32 zotT-t8 Joint Commissioner
of Comrlercial Taxes
(Appeal), Davanagre,
Karnataka

Goods and
Service Tax Act,
20L7

Goods and Selice
Tax

457.r9 zorT-tB Adclitional
Commissioner of
Taxes (Appeal),
Karnataka

Employees
Provident and
Miscellaneous
Fund Act, r95z

Provident Fturd 74.4r April zorz to
December zor5

EPFAppellate
Tribunal/ CGiT

hlcorne Tax Act,
t96r

Incor-ne Tax 26.9r 1994-95 High Court of Delhi

Income Tax Act,
t96t

hrcor-ne Tax B.u 2oo4-o5 Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT)

Income Tax Act,
t96t

Income Tax 176.79 zooT-o8 hrcome Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT)

h.rcome Tax Act,
t96t

Incorne Tax 13o.56 zooS-o9 Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT)

Income Tax Act,
t96t

hrcome Tax 363,73 20rr-12 Iucotne Tax Appellate
Tribunal(ITAT)
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Name of the
statute

Nature of dues Amount
(Rs. in
lakhs)*

Period to which
the amount

relates**

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Incorne Tax Act,
t96t

Incorne Tax 325.o5 2OL2-L3 hrcorre Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT)

Income Tax Act,
t96r

Income Tax g9z.tz 2ot3-L4 Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT)

Income Tax Act,
196r

Income Tax 8.69 2OL4-15 Commissioner of
Income Tax Appeals
(crT-A)

Iucome Tax Act,
196t

Income Tax 576.42 zo15-r6 Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT)

hrcome Tax Act,
t96t

Income Tax tt,7z6,g7 zot6-t7 Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT)

Lrcolne Tax Act,
l^96r

Iucome Tax 6S+.62 zotT-t8 Commissioner of
Income Tax Appeals
(crT-A)

Income Tax Act,
t96t

Income Tax ro.o6 zorS-r9 Cornmissioner of
Income Tax Appeals
(crr-A)

Income Tax Act,
196r

Income Tax 325.63 zorS-r9 Assessing Officer

Income Tax Act,
t96t

Income Tax 96.os 202L-22 Assessing Officer

Income Tax Act,
t96t

Lrcolne Tax 117.72 2c)79-2O Colnmissioner of
Income Tax Appeals
(CIT.A)

hrcorne Tax Act,
t96t

Income Tax rr,458.82 2018-19, 2Org-2O
and zozo -zr

Commissioner of
Iucone Tax Appeals
(crT-A)

Income Tax Act,
l.96t

Income Tax r43.o4 2020-21 Commissioner of
Income Tax Appeals
(cIr-A)

Income Tax Act,
196t

Income Tax 6ot.87 202t-22 Commissioner of
Income Tax Appeals
(crT-A)

x Amounts reported above are net of payments made
** In respect of Income Tax, the period refers to the Assessment Year

viii. There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

(b) On the basis of our audit procedures, we repoft that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or go\zernment or any go\¡ernment authority.

(c) In our opinion, the term loan has been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained
(Also, refer Note z3 and z8 to the financial statements).
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(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries orjoint ventures.

(Ð The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or joint ventures.

(x) (a)

(x) (b)

(xi) (a)

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause S(xXa) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause S(xxb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(xi) (b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section qg(tz)
of the Act, in F'orm ADT-4, as prescribed under rule r3 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause ¡(xiXb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to information
and explanation given to us, the Company has received a whistle-blower complaint during the
year, which has been considered by us for any bearing on our audit and reporting under this
clause.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2ot4 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause g(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections r77 and rBB of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard z4 "Related
Party Disclosures" specified under Section r33 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(xirl ft) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

xll.

xln
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xv.

xvi.(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(xviÐ

(xviiÐ

(xix)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section r9z
of the Act under clause g(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1994. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause S(xvixb) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause g(xvixc) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reportiug under clause g(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Note So(h) to the financial statements), ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, ourknowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have
any amount remaining unspent under Section 13S(S) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause S(yrxa) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) There are no ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, therefore, the Company does not have
any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause S(xxxb) of the Order is not applicable.
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(>oÐ The reporting under clause g0oÐ ofthe Order is not applicable in respect ofaudit ofStandalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: o12754N/NSooo16

,r?^h/^-
Sougata Mukherjee
Partner

Number: oS7oB4
UDIN : z 4o 57 o8 4BKï O AL 4434

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 7,2o.24
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Statement ofaudited standalone flnancial results for the quarter and year ended March3l,2024

s.
No.

Particulars Ouarter ended Year ended

31.03.2024
Refer Note 1 1

37.12.2023
Unaudlted

3L.O3.2023
Refer Note 11

31.o3.2024
Audlted

37.O3.2023
Audlted

I

II

Iil
IV

v
vt

vilt
vIl

IX

x

lncome
Revenue fronl operations

0ther income

Total income (l)
Expenses
Cost of rnater¡als consumed

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes ¡r inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade, work-in
progless

Enrployee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (ll)
Proflt before tax (l-ll)
Tax expense (refer note 7):

Current tax

Deferred tax Iexpense/ (credit)]
Total tax expense (lY)
Net profìt after tax (lll-lÐ
Other Comprehenslve Income [OCI):
Items that will not be reclassifled to prof¡t or loss:
(iJ Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plâns

(ii) Inconre tax effect on above iten
Total other comprehensive income for the year/period (Vl)
Total Comprehensive lncome for the year/period (V+VI)
Earnlngs per equity share of I 2/- each
(i) Basic ({)
(iiJ Diluted (T)

Networth
(i) Paid-up equity share capital (T 2/- per share)
(ii) Reserves/other equity
(iii) Net worth

Ratios:
(i) Debt equity ratio
(ii) Debt serv¡ce coverage ratio
(iiiJ Interest service coverage ratio

Iiv) Current ratio
[v) Long term debt to working capital
(vi) Bad debts to trade receivable ratio
(vii) Current liability ratio
lviii) Total debts to total assets

Iix) Debtors turnover "
(x) lnventory turnover ^
(xi) 0perâting margin (o/o)

(xiiJ Net profit margin (%)
fxiiil Asset coverase for NCDs

4,918.80
87.3 0

4,778.7 6

66.56
4,579.66

757.'t1
L7,96"1.97

277.00
L5,282.54

421.A5

5,006.10

3,018.59

(0.00)

(42.6e)
2A1..32

t42.72
119.5 0

77 6.33

4,7A532

2,722.34
0.00

91.70
286.25
149.82
116.86
795.73

4,676.77

2,74t.14
66.64

105.78
259.53
13 5.25

94.35
83 0.2 6

1A,232.97

'1,1,737.92

14.26

(442.04)

t,7t9.51
5 85.81

+52.02

3,773.27

L5,704.39

9,740.13

66.66

(2s.48)
477.48
5 34,30

354.67

3,778.67

4,295.77
770.33

160,68
20.58

181-.26
529.O7

(1 0,14)
2.5 5

(7.se)
s2t.4A

16.64
't 6.57

(Not annualised)

63.95
1.0,t27.38
10,191.3 3

0.3I
2.80
6.87
1.51
0.47
0.02
0.73
0.2r
6.27
3,65

16.0To/o

70.570/o

4.60

4,162.70
622.62

34.47
13 3.13

167.60
4SS.O2

1,59
(0.40)
1.1-9

456.2t

L4.3L
L4.29

lNot annualised)

63,95
9,606.40
9,670.35

0.43
6.64
5.94

1.5 0

0.5 B

0.04
0.70
0.22
5.83
3.29

15.760/o

9.57o/o

4.05

4,232.95
443.82

92.42

(6.28)

a6.54
357.2A

(6,43',)

7.62
(4.81)

352.47

77.25
7t.25

(Not annualised)

63.95

8,0 3 6.18

8,1 0 0.1 3

0.41,

3.39
4.98
L.40
0.44
0.01
0.76
0.20
7,59
4.L9

9.500/o

7.640/o

5.86

76,044.69
2,144.28

195,15

379.03

574.1A
L,6t4.7O

(s.3 6)
1.35

(4.01)
7,670.O9

50.77
5 0.70

63.95
70,727.34
10,191.33

0,38
3.91
5.51
1.51
0.47
0.02
0.73
0.27
5.62

74.'J.30/o

8.850/o

4.60

74,766.43
937.96

t22.02
101.11

223,13
774.43

22.50

22.50

63,95
8,03 6.1 I
8,100.13

6,38
(1,60)
4.78

719.61

0.41
2.22
3.42
1.40
0.44
0.01
0.76
0.20
6.28
3.48

6.980/o

4.55o/o

5.86

^ Ratios for the quarter lìave been annualised
Formulae for computâtion of râtios are as follows :

(i) Debt Equity Ratio : Total Debt (excluding lease liability)/ Net Worth
Total Debt; Secured Loans + Unsecured Loans - Liquid Investments and fixed deposits with original maturity ofless than three months
Net Worth : Equity Share Capital + Reserves

long ter¡n debt during the period)

[iii) Interest Service Coverage Ratio : EBDIT / Irinance costs

EBDIT ; Profit before Taxes + Depreciation and amortization + Finance costs + Except¡onal items (norì câsh), ifany
(iv) Current Ratio : Current assets / Current liabilities

debt)l
(vi) Bad debts to trade receivable râtio : Provisior) for doubtful debt /Closing gross trade receivable
(vii) Current liabiÌity ratio : Current Liabilities / Totâl liabilities
(viii) ]'otal debts to total assets : 'fotal BorrowiÌìgs (excluding lease liability) / Total assets

[ix) Debtors turnover : Sale ofgoods and services / 
^verage 

ofopening and closing trade receivable
(xllDventorytunìoverrâtio:(Costofmaterialconsunled+PurchaseofStock-in-Trade+Changesininventoriesoffinishedgoods, Stock-

in-Trade andwork-in-progress)/Averageofopeningandclosinginve¡rtoryofRM,SFC,FGandScrap

[xi) Opelating margin (%) : (Net profit before tax - lnterest from bank deposits ald loâns - othe¡'no¡ì operating income + finance cost ) /
Revenue fronr operations *100

(xii) Net profit ¡rargin (0/o) : Profit after tax ,/ ]'otâl income *100

(xiii) Asset Coverage fbr NCDs : Net Propcrty, plânt ând equiPme¡ìt includiùg CWIP/ Long tcnìr loans and NCDs (including iìtcrcst
accured and notdue orì the saùìc) havingfirstpari-passu chârge on PPE includingCWIP



¡indal SAW Limited
CIN- 1271 O4UP1 9B4PLCOZ397 9

Partlculars Year ended
March3l,2024

Audited

Year ended
March 31,2023

Audlted

A, CASH INFLOW/ (OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net proflt before tax
Adjustments for:
Add/(lessl
Depreciation arìd amortisation expense

Income frorn government grant /export ilcentive
Finance costs

Loss on sale of property, plant and equiprnent and intangible assets (net)

Balances written offl(written back) (netJ

Loss allowance for trade receivables, others and advances

Share based payment expense

Effect of unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Unrealised (gain)/ loss on derivatives (net)

Net (gain)/loss on sale of curreIt investme¡rts
Gain on Redeemable preference shares

Redemption premium on Redeernable preference shares

Net gain/(loss) on fair valuation of current investrnent
Interest income on loans, Rxed deposits, compound financial instrument and otlìers
Operating proftt before worklng capltal changes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(lncrease)/Decrease Inventories
(lncrease)/Decrease Trade receivables
(llcrease)/Decrease Loans, other finarrcial assets and other assets

lncrease/[Decrease) Trade payables

Increase/(Decrease) Other financial Iiabilities, provisions and other liabilities
cash generated from operatlons
Taxes paid
Net câsh lnflow/ (outnow) from operatlng actlvltles
B. CASH INFLOW/ (OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equiprnent and intangible assetJ

Sale proceeds from property, plant ând equipment and intangible assets

Proceed from sale of current investrnent
lnvestment i¡r Non current investment
consideration towards business acquisition (net of cash acquisition)
Proceeds from redemption of Covt Securities (ìron-current investments)
(lnvestmentJ/ sale oftreasury shares by Samruddhi Employees Trust
Loan received back from related and other parties

Loan given to related and other parties

lnterest received
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from lnvestlng activltles
c. cAsH TNFLOW/ fOUTFl,oW) FROM FfNANCTNG ACTfVTTTES

Dividend paid (net of unclairned /unpaid dividendJ
Proceeds fro¡n non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowirgs
Payment of lease liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in curreDt borrowings
Interest and bank charges paid

Net cash lnnow/ (outflow) from flnanclng actlvlties
Net changes ln cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofthe year
Cash acquired pursuânt to Composite Scheme ofAmalgamation
Exchange difference on translâtion of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents at end ofthe year

(7e3.06)
10.59

0.1,4

(4.46)
(1,093.99)

(1es.2Bl
8,09
0,14

(1 s,30)

200,00

23.67

0.02

0.7+
136.84
(13.80)
33.24

2,taa.2a 937.96

354.67
(L4.44)
534,30

5.74
(4.3s)
10.51

6.92
(3.81)
(1.3s)
(0.14)

[1e7.83)
{16.6e)

(776.75) 496.20
1,434.16

452.02
(27.37)
580,2 5

5.66

6.97

0.02
45,41
(6.e0)
0.67

(ss.7e)
(0,06)

[1s6.18] a44,64
3,O32.92

(546.s4)
(1e8.48)

103.72
39.06
(35.34) (637.s8)

2,395.34
(2s8.+3)

2,736.91

(1,657.17)

(4o.32)

(100.10)
1,000,00
(384,61)

(7.29)
8.00

[5s6.32)

(388.00)
(27.6e)

(6es.401
(s16.e7)

(27e.6e)
(1,,28O.64)

9.50
1,57a.62

72.35 40.14
1,474.30

1135.99 )

(63.10)

1,338.31

(4s.e1)

(1,691.161

439.42
40.58

(398.761
434.73

o.52
0.09o,15

480.15 40.58

NOTES:

1, Increase/(decrease) in current borrowings are shown net of repayments.
2. Figures in bracket indicates cash outflow.
3. The above statemeÌrt of cash flows has been prepared under tlìe ildirect rnethod set out i¡ì I ND AS - 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'

34.20 crores.



JINDAL SAW LIMITED
Statement of audited standalone assets and liabilities

Crores
s.

No.
Particulars As at

31.o3.2024
Audited

As
3!.03.2023

Audited

1,1,82.07

5.84
1..96

76.35
1.32.04

4+.1.3

0.r.3
2,927.00

480.15
117.49

7,35+.93
25.29
24.56

527.70

3,970.37

7,2L8.50
54t.28

52.47
61,.05

5.85

3,748.54
40,58
22.90

1,445.68
71.93

717.66
433.66

7,1.2t.79
5.74
2.78

'i.72.97

66.44
41.92

3,351.19

5,835.12
206.46

54.64
61.05

7.47

1 749.t0 .s21

63.95
L0,727.38

1,278.91.
37.98
29.44
t7.29

867.67
91.94

23.81

2,608.01
2.70

2,787.48
195.5+
517.76

99.24

26.35

63,95
8,036.18

92t.BB
38.1.7

29.41
28.87

659.88
246.17

2,368.08
2.65

2,807.92
208.26
625.40

85.41
I 749.t0 B.S2I

)(1

(2)

(1)

(2)

3t )

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(bJ Capital work-in-progress

[c) Right-of-use assets
(d) Goodwill
(eJ Intangible assets
(f) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Loans
(ivJ Other financial assets

(g) Current tax assets
(h) Other non-current assets

Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Other financial assets

(cJ Contract assets
(d] Other current assets

EQUITYAND TIABILITIES
Equity
(aJ Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

[iiJ Lease liabilities

[iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(cJ Deferred tax liabilities (net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Current Liabilities
(aJ Financial liabilities

[i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iiiJ Trade payables

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and

[B) total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial liabilities

[b) Other current liabilities

[cJ Provisions
TOTAL

TOTAT ASSETS

AND TIABILITIES



Notes:

L. Jindal ITF Limited, subsidiary of the Company, had won an arbitral award allowing various claims to the tune of T 1,891.08
crores plus interest and applicable taxes. During the fìnancial year 2079-20, the subsidiary had fìled enforcement application
under section 36 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, for the execution of arbitral award being pronounced in favour of
the subsidiary whereas the customer had preferred appeal under Section 34 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996,
challenging the said arbitral award. Both the aforesaid cases are presently sub-judice before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. As
per interim relief granted by Hon'ble High Court the subsidiary received { 856.31 crores on submission of bank guarantees.
Based on the current status and the expert legal advice received, the Company is expecting a favourable outcome which would
cover all the investments, loans and advances in f indal ITF and consequently no adjustments have been made to the carrying
values of loans and investments in the books of the Company.

2. The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), vide its order dated March 21, 2024,has approved the Composite Scheme
of Amalgamation ["the Scheme") of ]indal Quality Tubular Limited ('lQTL"), f indal Tubular (lndia) Limited (.'lTIL") ("Subsidiaries")
and Jindal Fittings Limited ('lFL') with the Company, the appointed date being April 01, 2022.|QTL and fTIL were in the business
of pipe manufacturing and coating and JFL was in the business of manufacturing of Ductile Iron fittings. Consequently, the financial
statements ofthe Company, for the quarter and year ended March 37,2023 and quarter ended December 31, 2023 have been
restated based on the audited financial statements of the Company, f QTL, fTIL and f FL to give effect to the business combination.
For IQTL and fTIL, thè Company has accounted for the business combination as a common control transaction using the pooling of
interest method (as prescribed in Appendix - C to Ind AS 103) resulting into capital reserve of 126.57 crores and for JFL using
acquisition method in accordance with the Ind AS 103 - Business Combination and the Scheme resuÌting into goodwill of { 61.05
crores.

3. The Hon'ble Hyderabad bench of NCLT vide its order dated March 37,2023, approved the resolution plan submitted by
the Company for Sathavahana Ispat Limited(SIL). The conditions precedents as per the said plan were achieved on April 26,
2023,by virtue of this, SIL stands merged with the Company on the said date. The net cost to the Company for acquiring the
assets net of assumed liabilities is T 1,,093.99 crores, As per Ind AS 1"03, the acquisition was accounted for in the books, using
the acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were measured at their fair values as on the acquisition
date and the purchase consideration was allocated to the net assets acquired, which resulted in recognizing a capital reserve
of{ 516.61 crores.

4. The Company has sold 1000/o equity shares in subsidiary Quality Iron and steel Limited leading to loss of control effective
March 30,2024, resulting in loss of T 0.03 crores.

5. The company has issued 8.25o/o non-convertible debentures amounting to T 500 crores (Coupon rate has been revised to
8.50o/o p.a. from 19th September 2022), These are secured by first pari-passu charge on the Company's moveable and
immovable properties excluding certain assets which are specifìcally charged to other lenders. Asset cover ratio for NCD's
was 4,6 and 5.86 as on March 3'1,2024 and March 3'J.,2023 respectively,

6. The Company has one primary business segment i.e. Iron & Steel products, on standalone basis

7. Tax expense are inclusive ofprior period tax adjustments.

B. The Company had invested in T 201 crores redeemable preference shares (RPS) of Jindal ITF Limited, subsidiary, on
December 07, 2015, redeemable at the end of seven years which was accounted for at fair value as a compound financial
instrument. During 2022-23, the terms of the RPS were modifìed extending the redemption date by 5 years and introducing
a redemption premium of Ilo/o at monthly resl payable on maturity, with retrospective effect from its date of issue. Based
on opinions taken by the Company, the modification resulted into extinguishment of old debt component of RPS and
recognition of same as other income being excess of new fair value over extinguished value of debt amounting to { 197,83
crores (including T L13.40 crores during the quarter ended December 31, 2022) in financial year2022-23.

9. The Board of Directors has recommended payment of dividend @ ? 4 per equity share of { 2 each for the year ended March
37, 2024 aggregating to 7 127 .90 crores.

L0. Company is a large corporate as perthe applicability criteria upto March 37,2024. The annual disclosure made bythe
Company as a large corporate as under:

Annexure - A
Initial Disclosure to be made by entity Identified as a large Corporate for the Financial Year 2023-24



S. no. Particulars Fv 2023-24 FY 2022-23

7 Name of the Company findal SAW Limited

) CIN L27 70 4UP L98 4PLC0239 7 9

3. Outstanding borrowing of Company
(in Rs. Crores) *

Borrowings < 1,796.66 Crores*
Lease Obligation { 40,68 Crores

*Qualiff ing outstanding
borrowing amount |s7 783.42
Crores

Borrowings < 1.,202.76 Crores*
Lease Obligation T 40.83 Crores

*Qualiff ing outstanding
borrowing amount is 7 1,03 4.42
Crores

4 Highest Credit Rating During the
previous F,Y, along with name of the
Credit Rating Agency

a) CARE AA; Outlook stable For
long term banking facilities and
NCDs
B) BWR AA : Stable
For Long term NCDs of? 500
crores only.

a) CARE AA-; Outlook stable
For long term banking facilities and
NCDs

Bl BWRAA: Stable
For Long term NCDs of{ 500
crores only.

5 Name of the Stock Exchange in which
the fine shall be paid, in case of
shortfall in the required borrowing
under the framework

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

* Note: The amount of outstanding borrowing stated is as perthe definition laid down under para 2,2 (ü) of SEBI circular
SEBI/H O/DDHS / CIR / P / 20 1.8 / 1. 44 date d N ovember 2 6, 20 78.

We confirm that we are a Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular
SEBI /HO/DDÍIS / ClR / P / 20 18 / 7 4 4 date d N ovember 2 6, 20 18.

Annexure-81
Annual Disclosure to be made by entity ldentified as a Large Corporate

1.

2.

3.

4.

Name of the Company
CIN
Report filed for the financial year ended
Details of the Current block ail tn

5, Details of to be if tn ct to revious block all

Crore
(r)

Rs.

findal Saw Limited
L27 L0 4UP r9B 4PLC02397 9
March 37,2024

in Rs crore

S. No. Particulars T
l. 2-year block period [Speciff fìnancial years) T:2023-24

T+t:2024-25
u. Incremental borrowing done in FY [T) (a) Nil
llt. Mandatory borrowing to be done through debt securities in FY (Tl (b) = (25o/o of a) Nil

lv Actual borrowing done through debt securities in FY (T) (c) Nil
Shortfall in the borrowing through debt securities, if any, for FY (T-1) carried forward to FY
rT'ì.ldì

Nil

vl. Quantum of (d), which has been met from (c) (e) Nil

vll Shortfall, if any, in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities for FY (T)

{after adjusting for any shortfall in borrowing for FY (T-1) which was carried forward to FY

[r)] (0= þ)-t(c)-(e)l
{If the calculated value is zero or neqative, write "nil"}

Nil

S. No. Particulars T

L 2-year Block period (Specify financial years) T:2022-23
T+1:2023-24

il. Amount of fine to be paid for the blocþ if applicable
Fine = 0.2o/o of {(d)-(eJ} #

Nil

#: (dJ and [e) are same as mentioned at 4(v) and 4(vi) of this annexure.



11. The figures of the q'uarter ended March 31,2024 and March 31,2023 are the balancing figures between the audited
figures in respect of the full financial year and the published unaudited year to date figures upto third quarter of the
respective fÌnancial year which were subject to limited review by the auditor.

12. These results are reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May
7,2024.

By Order ofthe Board
FoT|INDALSAW

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 7,2024

findal
Managing Dlrector
DIN:00005317
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Jindal Saw Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jindal Saw Limited

(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") and itsjoint ventures (refer Note 5r to ihe attached
consolidated financial statements), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 3r,
zoz4, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial
statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Cbmpanies Act,
eor3 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, ofthe consotidated state ofaffairs ofthe Group and
its joint ventures as at March gL, 2024, and consolidated total comprehensive income (compiising
of profit and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidatéd cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section

t43(ro) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
"Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements" section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and its joint ventures in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms
of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilìed our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 15 and 16 of
the Other Matters section below, is suffîcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KeyAudit Matter

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Building No. 8, 8th Floor, Tower - B, DLF Cyber Ciry Gurugram - l22OO2

T: +91 (124) 4620000, F: +91 (124) 4620620

Registered office and Head of¡ce: 1 1-A, V¡shnu Þ¡gamber Marg, Sucheta Bhawan, Gate No 2, New Delh¡ - 110002

Pr¡ce Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted ¡nto Pr¡ce Watorhousê Chartered Accountants LLP (a L¡m¡ted Liab¡lity Partnership with LLP ¡dentjty no: LLPIN AAC-500 1 )

w¡th effect from July 25,2O14. Post ¡ts convers¡on to Pr¡c6 Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its lCAl registrat¡on number ¡s 012754N/N500016 (lCAl reg¡strat¡on
number before conversion wâs 01 2754N)



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Jindal Saw Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statemeuts
Page z of8

Appropriateness of Business Combinations accounted for in accordance with acquisition
method during the year [Refer to note 58.1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements]

Description of KeyAudit Matter:

During the year, the Company has acquired (i) Sathavahana Ispat Limited ("SIL") on April 26, zozg
pursuant to the resolution plan under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code ("IBC") approved by the
National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") vide its Order dated March St,2o2g, and (ii) Jindal Fittings
Limited ("JFL") ("Associate") with effect from April r, 2022 pursuant to the composite scheme of
amalgamation between the Company and Jindal Quality Tubular Limited, Jindal Tubular India Limited
and JFL ("Scheme") approved by the NCLT vide its Order dated March 2r, 2024.

The acquisition of JFL and SIL has been accounted for in accordance with the acquisition method as
prescribed under Ind AS ro3 'Business Combinations' and the Scheme.

In respect of these acquisitions, the management engaged valuation experts ("management's experts")
to determine the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed lor the purpose of allocation of
the purchase price and determination of the resultant Goodwill/ Capital Reserve as on the date of
acquisition.

We considered the appropriateness of accounting for the above business combinations as a key audit
matter due to the following:

Complexity of the above transactions and the related accounting treatment as per the applicable
accounting standards;
Significant management estimation ancl use of assumptions required in the cletermination of fair
values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the computation of the resulting Goodwill
/Capital Reserve.

flow our audit addressed the key audit matter:

We performed the following procedures:

Understood and evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the Company's
controls over the accounting for business combinations.

Read the resolution plan and the Scheme, as approved by the NCLT, to obtain an understanding of
the business combination transactions and to assess the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment.

Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company's accounting policy for accounting of business
combinations.

a

a

a

o

a

o

o

Assessed the independence and competence of the management's experts.

Read the valuation reports of the management's experts and with the involvement of auditor's
expert, assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodology and key assumptions such as

discount rate, long-term growth rates and weight average cost of capital.

Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting treatment and disclosures made by the Company for
these business combinations in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS ro3, and the Scheme.

a
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Based on the above audit procedures, the accounting for business combinations during the year was
considered to be reasonable.

Other Information

5. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the
reports of the other auditors as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 15 below), we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

6. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group including its joint ventures in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section r33 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; makingjudgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

7. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability
of the Group and of its joint ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

B. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures
are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process ofthe Group and of its joint ventures.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial stâtements.

ro. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section r+g(Sxi) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its joint
ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attãntión in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modiff our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its joint ventures to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group and its joint ventures to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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11. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identifu during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

14. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March gL, 2o2g have been restated from
April r, 2cz2to give effect of the composite scheme of amalgamation ("Scheme") as described in Note
5B.r of the consolidated financial statements. The financial statements of Jindal Fittings Limited for
the year ended March 91, zo2g, considered to give effect of the Scheme were audited by other
auditors, who vide their audit report dated April L4, zo2g issued an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements. We have not audited the restated figures for the year ended March 3r, zoz3 and
relied upon these reports furnished to us by the Management.

15. We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of all subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements/financial information reflect total
assets of Rs 7o3,617.73 lakhs and net assets of Rs 5r4,8o4.3o lakhs as at March gt,2o24,total revenue
of Rs 3zz,69z.57lakhs, total net loss after tax of Rs t,o46.t9lakhs and total comprehensive loss of Rs
r,692.4o lakhs and cash flows (net inflow) amounting to Rs zz,386.9z lakhs for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group's share of net loss after tax of Rs. o.58 lakhs and total
comprehensive loss of Rs. o.5B lakhs for the year ended March gL, 2c.24 as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of two joint ventures, whose financial statements/
financial information have not been audited by us. These financial statements / financial information
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management,
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect ofthese subsidiaries andjoint ventures, is based solely on the reports
ofthe other auditors.

16. We did not audit the financial statements of the Samruddhi Employees Trust (the'Trust') included
in the standalone financial statement of the Company, which constitute total assets of Rs r,o9r.6z
lakhs and net assets of Rs (6o.o6) lakhs as at March 9t,2024, total income of Rs. r3o.34 lakhs, net
excess of expenditure over income of Rs (r3o.9Z) lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs 32.27
lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial information
have been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the Management, and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect ofthe Trust, is based solely on the report ofthe other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2o2o ("CARO 2o2o"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (rr) of Section r43 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure B, a statement on the matter specified in paragraph g(xxi) of CARO 2o2o.

18. As required by Section 43(g) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purposes ofour audit ofthe aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors, except for tñè matters stated
in paragraph r8(hXvi) below on repõrting under Rule rr(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, zor4 (as amended) ("the Rules").

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section r33 ofthe Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 9L,2c24 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint venture incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and joint venture incorporated in India
is disqualified as on March gr,2c.24 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
t6+(z) ofthe Act.

(Ð With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference
is made to our remarks in paragraph t8(hXvi) below on reporting under Rule rr(g) of the Rules.

(S) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure A.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
rr of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, zor4, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint ventures Refer Note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group and its joint ventures has long-term contracts as at March gt, 2c24 for which
there are no material foreseeâble losses. The Group and its joint ventures did not have any
long term derivative contracts as at March 9t,2024.
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iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and
joint venture incorporated in India during the year except in respect of dividend amounting
to Rs 97.15 lakhs which according to the information and explanation provided to us by the
management, has been kept in abeyance due to legal cases frefer note go to the
Consolidated Financial Statementsl

ir'. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and joint venture
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors ofsuch subsidiaries andjoint
venture respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note
47G)Ul to the consolidated financial statements, no ftrnds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and joint venture which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors ofsuch subsidiaries andjoint venture
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note +ZG)UII
to the consolidated financial statements, no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggrcgate) have bcen received by thc Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint
venture from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of
such subsidiaries andjoint venture shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Par[y
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries
and joint venture which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has
caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule rr(e) contain any material misstatement.

\¡ The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Holding Company is in compliance
with Section rz3 of the Act. The joint ventures and subsidiary companies have not declared
any dividends.

r.i. Based on our examination, which included test checks and that performed by the respective
auditors of the subsidiaries and one joint venture which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding Company and such
subsidiaries and joint venture have widely used ERPs as their accounting software for
rnaintaining books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software, except (a) for modification made by certain users with specific access; and (b) that
the audit trail (edit log) for certain information or data and at the database level (which
records only the modified values) was enabled for a part of the year, in case of Holding
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Company, three subsidiaries and one Joint venture. During the course of performing our
procedures, we and the respective auditors of such subsidiaries and joint venture, did not
notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with for the period the audit trail
feature was enabled. Also, refer note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

r9. The Group and its joint venture have paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section t97 readwith Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: orz754N/N5ooo16

'T'/þ/"tr
Sougata Mukherjee

Membership Number o ST 08 4
UDIN: z4o 57 oB 4BKFOBAZSBZ

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 7,2024
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Report on the fnternal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 149 of the Act

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March St,2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of Jindal Saw Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiary
companies and its joint Venture, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for f nternal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its joint
Ventures, to whom reporting under clause (i) ofsub section 3 ofSection r43 ofthe Act in respect ofthe
adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderþ and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section r+g(ro)
of the Companies Act, zot3, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor'sjudgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

S. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial
controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financiai control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (r) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (z) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (g) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

T. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

B. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its joint Venture, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March gr,2o24,based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matter

g. Our aforesaid reports under Section qS(SXi) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to five
subsidiary companies and one joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on
the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Number: orz754N/N5ooor6

v

Partner
Membership Number o57o84.
UDIN: z4o 57 o8 4BKFOBA73B7

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 7,2024

L
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As required by paragraph g(xxi) of tlie CARO zozo, we repoft that the auditors of the followiug compauies have
given qualification or adverse remarks in their CARO report on the standalone fiuancial stateureuts of the
respective cornpanies inclucled in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Courpauy:

r. Cash Loss reporled by subsidiaries andjoint venture

s.
No.

Name of
the

Company

CIN Relationship with
the Holding

Company
(Holdins

Company/
Subsidiary/ Joint

Venture)

Date of
the

respective
auditors'
report

Paragraph number
and comment in the

respective CARO
report reproduced

below

a. JITF
Shipyarcls
Limited

U35rzzUP
zooTPLCo
6ss66

Subsidiary April 18,
2024

(xvii) The Company has
not incurred cash loss
during the current
financial year and
inculred cash losses of
Rs r9.or lal<hs in the
irnmediately preceding
financial year.

b. Jindal
Hturtit.rg
Energy
Sewices
Lirnited

UzSgooUP
zozzPLCt6
o464

Joint Venture April 23,
2024

(rvii) The Company has
not incnrred cash loss
dr.rring the curreut
financial year aud
incurred cash losses of
Rs 97.72lakhs in the
immediately preceding
financial year.

c. Jindal ITF
Limited

U749ooUP
zooTPLCo
69247

Subsidiary April 19,
2024

(xvii) The Company has
incurred cash loss during
the year amounting to
Rs. 15,763.2r lakhs and
Rs rg,z57.g7 lakhs in the
in'rmediately preceding
financial year.

z. Jindal Saw Limited (CIN LzZro+UPrg8+PLCoTgTÐ (Parent Company) vicle auditor's report dated May 7,
zoz4 which is reprodnced by us as under:

S (iii) (c) In respect ofthe aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayrnent of principal and paymeut of interest has
been stipulatecl by the Company, except for the following instances, the parties are lepaying the principal
arnonuts, as stipulated, and are also legular in payment ofinterest as applicable.

Name of the
entity

Arnount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

Due Date Extent of
delay

Remalks (if any)

Vista Mining Prt.
Ltd.

Montìrly
instalhr.rents
due on various
dates

Last day of e'r'ety
month

Loan amounting Rs.
r,zz7.8t lakhs (fully
provicled in earliel years)
written off during the
year'
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Iu respect ofthe following loans, no schedule for repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated by the Compauy. Therefore, in the absence of stipulation of repaynìelìt terrns, we are unable to
comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest.

Name of the entity Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

Due Date Remarks (if any)

Jindal ITF Limited t35,O42.22 Payable on demand Refer note 63 to the standalone
financial statements and Refer
note 62 of consolidated financial
statements

Ralael Holdings Limited 4,666.o8 Payable on dernand Fully provided in the financial
statements

3. Jindal Intellicom Lirnited (CIN UZ+8ggDLr988PLCo33588) (Subsidiary) vide auditor's report dated April
08,2c24 which is reproduced by us as under:

S (iii) (c) In respect of loans given to the wholly owned subsidiary, the loan is payable on demand. In respect
of other loans and advances in the nature of loans given the schedule of repalnlent of principal and payment
of interest has been stipuìated and the repayments or receipts are regular as per the schedule stipulated except
in case of advances made in earlier years to two companies.

S (iii) (d) The details of principal and interest amount overdue for more than ninety days are here below:

Particulars Principal Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) Interest (Rs. in Lakhs)

Overdne for more than 9o
days as at March 3r, zo24

4t6.67 27.43

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: orz754N/N5ooo16

Number: o57o84
UDIN : z4o 57 o8 4BKFO BAZS 8 Z

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 07,2024



,rNDAr. SAiV LIMITED
lìtgtì. Ofi: A-1, tll,SlDC lncll, Area, NandgaoD Ro¡(1, l(osi K.ìlan, Distt. Mathura (U.P.)-281403
Cortì.(Jffic.: lrndal Centre, 12, Bh¡kaiji Canla Place, New Delhi- 110066
ctN- t,27 l04uPl9B4PLCO23979
State¡nent ofco¡rsolidated audited fìnancial results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024

^ Iìat¡os for the qua|ter ended have bcen anrualised
Forrnulae for contputation of ratios are as follows :

[i) Debt lj(ìuity Rat¡o :'lotal Debt (excluding lease liab¡lity)/ Net Worth
1'otal Debt: Secured l,oans + Unsecured Loans - Liqu¡d ¡rvestnìerts ar(l fìxed deposits with orig¡nal matur¡ty ofless than three ¡nonths
Nct Worth : Bqu¡ty Share Capital + Rcscrves

tern dcbt during the pc'riod)

(iii) Interest Scrvice Coverage R¿tio : ülDl'¡' / Financc costs
ulDl'f: Profìt befbrc'l'axcs + DepreciatjoD aDd amortis¡tion + Iìinance costs + Exception¡l iteDs (¡lon cash), ifany
(i\') Currcnt llat¡o : Current assets / Cun ent lial)ilities

(\,i) ll¡(l del)ts to tr¡dc rcceivablc r¡tio : l)rovision fbr (loilbtful debt / Closing gross trade rcccivablc

{vii) (:urrcDt liabiiity ratio : CurÌ cnt l,¡al)ilitics /'l'otal liab¡litics
(vii¡) 'll)till (lct)ri to tot¡l ¡ssL.ts : lbt¡l Borrowings (0xcluding lcasc ìiabilitv) /'l'otill assets

( ir) Dcbt0r's tu r|ove.r : Salc of goorls anrl Scrviccs / 
^\,c|ag0 

of o¡rcning and closiDg trî(10 rccc.i\arl)le

opcning a nd closing itr\,cnton, of I,ì[t, Slr(ì, F(ì ¡ìd Scrap

(\ii Ì Nct l)rolìt m¡r tir¡r ( r).1,ì : l)rolrt illtc¡ t¡\ / IÌ)tilì itrc()rDe' I0()

E¡¡ded Year Ended
s.

No,
Particulars

31,o3.2024 31,12,2023 3 1.03.2023 3r,o3,2024 31.o3.2023

5,425.1,6 5,656.09 5,188.09 20,957.69 17,A6A.07

5,493.6A

(e2.31,)

368.40

174.42
144.61

3,290.52

4.09

5,696.39

3,1 4B,BB

0.70

43.28
346.76

181.61
146.80

5,267,06

3,082.27
67.21.

99.88
341.34

161.53
125.54

21,125.90

(s30.14)
r,492.44

704.69
567.99

12,647.07
34.33

18,060.95

(40.2s)
1,,179.30

641.97
470.33

11,164.47
6A.23

ilt

IV
v
vt
vll

vill

I

II

B

c

D

E

F

in invcntories of fiìished goods, rvork-in-progress, stock-in-trade and

share of profit/(loss) ofioint venture, exceptional

Ite¡ns that w¡ll not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-nreasureùeìt losses on defined beDefit plaDs

Equity lnstruments through 0ther Comprelìensive lncome

b. Items that will be reclassif¡ed to profit or lossi
(i) [xchange differences in translating the foreign operatio¡Ì

Iii) Debt InstruDents through Othcr Conìprehensive lncotne
(iii) Income tax effect on above ite¡n
Total other comprehens¡ve income for the year/period (B)
Attributable tor
Owners oftlìe Parent
Non'c()Dtrol¡ j¡rg intcrcst

Comprehensive lncome for the year/period (C=A+B)

Networth
Ii) Paid-up equity slìare capital (T 2/- per share)
(ii) Reserves/other equity

nance costs

Net

Employee berrefìts cxpense

on-controlling interest

to:
of tlìe Parent

iii) lncome tax effect or above iterns

ofthe Parent
to:

expenses
and amortisation experìse

per equityshare of{ 2/. each

Ratios!
(¡) Debt equity ratio
(ii) Dcbt service coverage ratio
(iii) Interest seNice coverage rat¡o

Iiv) Currcnt ratio
(v) ¡,ong term debt to working capital

[vi) Bad debts to trade rece¡v¡ble r¡tio
[vii) Current liability ratio
(viii) Total debts to total assets

(ix) Debtors turnover "
(x) lrvc¡1to¡y tur¡rovcr ^
(x¡) Operating margin Io/o)

NoD-coDtrollirg i¡ìterest
Other Comprehensive lncome (OCI):

lncome
Revcruc florn opcratiorìs

Other ¡¡ìcorìre

Total iÌcome (l)
Exper¡ses

Cost of nìaterials consunrcd

PurclÌases of Stocl(-in jlrade

items and tax (l-ll)
Exceptional itens Ir'efer note 6)
Share of profit/0oss) of joirrt venture
Profit/(loss) before tax (tlt+lV+V)
Tax expense (refer Dote 9):
CuÌrent tax

Deferred tax Iexpense/(credit)]
Total tax expense (Vll)
Net profit/(lossl after tax (Vl-Vll) (Al

(i) Basic

(ii) Diluted
15.79
15.72

INot annualised)

4,427,44

665.80

63.95

B,

0.55
2.50
s.67
1.24

1.05

0.03
0.77

0.27
5.79

14.7 3o/o

0.71

666.51

162.05
24.09

186.14
44O37

502.18

[2 1.81]

( 10.41)
0.04
2.61

(1.03)

0.20
(0,04)
(8.63)

471,74

493.57
(21.83)

(Not annualised)

63.95

4,995.55

700.a4

(6.e5)

(6,e6)

505.48

s26.25

t20.78)

17.72

17.72

0.63
4.90
s,66
1.27

1.35

0.04
0.70
o,2a
6.26
2.99

75.O9o/o

(1.07)

699,77

4A.97

1,38.37

ta7 34
s12.43

533.21
(20.78)

1.62

[0.41)

(B,OBJ

(0.12)
0.04

(Not annualised)

63.95

{2

4,475.24

391.A2

(6.27)
0.01

1.58

0.03

276,57

336.20
(se.63J

11.24
77.24

0,60
2.34
4.20
r.12
r,66
o.o2
0.73
0.26
5.93

3.64

9.33o/o

(0.18)

391,64

78,38

15.7 6

94,14
297.5O

357.16
(se.66)

(t6.42)
0.21

(0.04)
(2o.e3l

1,607,13

7

1,677.03
(84.1

52.7 s

52.64

63.95
10,029.38

14,909,42

2,216,44

(0.81)

2,215.67

226.95

395.85
622,40

\592,A7

0.04
7.39

14.02

0.45
(0.07)

14,26

14.27

(0.01)

1,691.30
(84.77)

0.55
3.25
4.95
L,24

1.05

0.03
0.71

0.27
5.70
3.06

13.37o/o

(2

719,49

502.29

t7,31s.96

744,99

20.27
20.27

63.95
7,456.97

0,60
1.60

2.89
1.12

r.66
o.o2
0.73
0.26
6.35
3.06

6.BOo/o

140.75
726.95

267,70
451.79

643.95
(7e2.1.6)

6.57
0.01

( 1.6s]

45.33
0.34

(0,1 0)
50,50

s2.69
(2.te)

696.64
( 1e4,3s)



IINDAL SAW LIMITED
Consolidated audited statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,2024

Notes:
1. lncrease/(decrc¿ìseJ irì currert bolrowings are shown net of repaynlents.
2. Figures iD bracket indicates cash outflow.
3. 'l'he above statcnìerìt of caslì florvs has Lree¡ prepared under the indi¡ect mcth od set out in I N D AS - 7 'Statenìerìt of Cash Flows'.

Particulars Year ended
March3l,2024

Audited

Year ended
March 31,2023

Audited

A. CASH TNFLOW/ (OUTFI,OW) FROM THE OPERATING ACTtVITtES
Net profit before tax
Adiustments for:
Add/lless)
Depreciation and arìortisiìtiorì expe¡ìse

Income fì'oDl governnìert graÌt/export iìcentive
Finance Costs
Share of profit/lloss) of ioiìt venture and associate
Loss ol sale of property, plant and equiÞment ard intangible assets (netJ

Profit on sale ofsr¡bsidiary
Balances writter offl(written back) lnet)
l,oss on sale ofvessel - exceptional itenl
Loss allowance fol debts and advances
Share based paynreìrt expelses
Dividend received orì investnìents
Effêct of Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Unrealised Igain)/loss on dcrivat¡ves
Net fgain)/loss on sale ofcurrent investn]eIts
Reversal of provision for investnent iÌ associates
Net (gaiù)/loss on lair valuation of investment
Interest inconìe ou loans, fixed deposits ând others
Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in operating assets and liâbilities:
(lncrease)/Decrease Invelìtories
(lncrease)/Decrease lì ade receivables

0Dcrease)/Decrease Loans, other financiâl assets arìd otlìer assets

Increase/[Decrease ) Trade payables

IDcrease/lDecrease ) 0ther financial liâbilities, provisions and other Iiabilities
Cash generated fi'om operations
'l'axes paid

Net cash inflow / (outflowl from operating activities
B. CASH INFLOW/(OUTFtOW) FROM TNVESTING ACTTVTTIES

Purchase ofproperty, plaìt and equipment and intangible assets

Sale proceeds fì onr propefty, plant aDd equ ipnìent and iùtaDgillle assets

Investnent in nor-current iÌvestmerìts
Consideration towards business acquisitioù
Investnlent in mutual funds

Proceed fronr sale of mutual funds
Salc ol irÌtcrcst il subsitliary
(lnvestment)/Sale oftreasury shares by Santruddhi E¡lployees Trust
Dividerìd received orì Irìvestnìerìts
Loans received back fronl related and otlìer parties
Loans given to related and other parties
Proceeds frorr redemption ofgovernnìerìt securities (non-current iìvestmerts)
Irìterest received
Net cash inflow/(outllow) from investing activities
c. cAsH TNFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FTNANCTNG ACTTVTTTES

DivideDd paid (net of unclaimed / unpaid dividend)
Proceeds frorl noil-curreDt borrowirgs
RepaynìeDt of ìon-currcnt borrow¡ngs
Payment of lease liabilities
lncrcasc/ (decrcasc) in current borrowirìgs
IDterest and barl( charges paid

Loan repaid to related parties
Loan taken fronr related ¡rarties
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eq uivalents at beginDi¡rg of the year
Cash acquired pursuaDt to Composite Sclìeme ofAnralganat¡on
Dxchange differeìce oD translatiou offoreign currency cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofthe year

567.99
(27.37')

699.24
0.81
6.21,

0,04
(6,38)

17.67
45.4L

[0.20)
(6.7 0')
(0.s 1l
(0,Bel

(0.08)

(6es,sB)
(3 33.0s )

5 36.93
(6.88)

(34.3 s)

47.54

2,215.67

05.83
3,421.50

2,AAA.57

2,592.91

(1,e17.38)

(B62.ee')

71.37
(4.46)

(1,093,99)
(s0,82)
54.99

0.20
? ?q

(1,6.61,)

(100.10)
1,,006.22

(47 s.7B)
(24.67)
266.65

(664.69)
(2o.02)

663.14
77.5A

0.36

74l.OA

470.33

[74..44)
647.97

0.46
?.95

(24.74)
25.04

0.20
6.92

o.34
(3.62)
(7.72)

(1 3.ee)

[0.02]

(3r2.13')
(1,23s.1,4)

(64.05)

1,,684.3r
(1 s,301

(323.1,7)

86.79
(1s.30)

(76.62)
76.2'l

0.14

763.44
(40.46')

0.02
58,30

(63.10)
762.72

(47 4.s6)
(43,311

(913.81 )
(628.44)
(42.s7)
37.20

719.49

\7t4.61

1,776.30

1,615.84

(70.65)

(421.28)
496.62

0.08
2.16

77.5A

77.54



IINDAT SAW TIMITED
Statement of consolidated audited assets and liabilities

Consolidateds.
No.

Particulars
As at

31,03.2023
Audited

As
31.03.2024

Audited

3.73
3,469.50

741.08
153.54

60,55
30.70
36.69
78.79

833.90

4,895.28

8,6t7.59
632.20
t74.L3

61.05
6.73

t7 4.02
5,84

81.2?
457.67
342.87
r32.05
45.06

4.93
3,562.97

77.58
735.64

91.70
24.52

124.69
49.62

726.98

4,t04.82

7,231.99
299.87
183.16

61.05
7.93

769.66
5.7 4

35.66
869.94
356.94

66,44
47.99

1.592 39.76I

63.95
L0,029.38

(726.78)

25,05

2,107.65
165.50

32.07
36,50

895,1.7
97.94

3,478.89
9.20

2,928.07
280.72

1.,438.76

111.09
53.83

28.61

63.95
7,856.97
(642.01)

7,822.27
767.33

29.47
44.67

684.56
246.71

2,959.99
11.65

2,975.54
307.1.0

1,557.38
96.02
30.33

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

(3)

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
(aJ Property, plant and equipment

[b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Right-of-use assets

0 Goodwill

[d) Intangible assets
(e) Financial assets

(i) Investments

[ii] Trade receivables
(iii) Loans
(iv) Other financial assets

(fj Deferred tax assets (net)
(g) Current tax assets

[hJ Other non-current assets
Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

[i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iiiJ Cash and cash equivalents

[ivJ Bank balances other than [iii) above
(vJ Loans

[vi) Other financial assets
(c) Contract assets
(d) Current tax assets fnetJ
(e) Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITYAND LIABITITIES
Equity
(aJ Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
(cl Non-controlling interest
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
[aJ Financial liabilities

[i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
[iii) Other financial liabilities

[b] Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (netJ
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Current Liabilities
[a] Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

[iiJ Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and

(BJ total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(dJ Current tax liabilities [netJ

TOTAL AND LIABITITIES 2l 1.59 1 239.76



JINDAT SAW LIMITED
Consolidated audited segment information for the quarter ended March 31,2OZ4

consolidated
Ouarter ended Year Ended

s.
No.

Particulars

31.03.2024
Refer note 10

31.12.2023
Unaudited

37.03.2023
Refer note 10

37.03.2024
Audited

31.03,2023
Audited

5,395.97
28.09

5,624.98
31.75

5,t60.29
29.1,3

20,835.29
724.00

L7,758.92
1.71.2I

5,424.06
11,101

5,656.73
0.64

5,L89.42
1.3 3

20,959.29
1.60

17,870,L3
2.06

s.425.16 5.656.09 20.957.695,188.09 17,868.07

81.7.37
r0.3Bl

860.68
7.72

528.93
0.40

2,83+.37
0.63

1,308.90
113.651

81,6.99

(174.42)
LJ,¿J

862.40

[181.61)
20.05

529.33

[161.s3J
24.02

2,835,00

(704.69)
86.1,7

1,295.25

(641..e7)

9T,7I
665.80

0.71

700.84

(1.07\

39L.82

10.181

2,216.48

10.811

(2s.04)
(0.46\

744.99

666.51,
LB6,L4

699.77
1.87.34

391.64
94.1.4

2,215.67
622.80

7L9.49
267.70

48O.37 512.43 297.50 1,592.87 457.79

19,041,.24
1,,r02.79

877.56

1,9,1,59.86

1,21.6.08
892.89

1.6,752.83
1,308.15

778.79

1.9,04r.24
r,1.02.79

877.56

76,L52.83
1,308.15

778.78
21,o27.59 21,268.83 18,239.77 21,027.59 L8,239.76

4,1,70.50
948.39

6.535.55

4,484.37
939.70

6.950.'i.9

4,5I8.16
945.44

5.497.26

4,1.70.50

948.39
6.535.55

4,5I8.76
945.44

5,497.25

I

2

3

4

Profit/(loss) before finance costs, exceptional items,
unallocable expense/income and tax
aJ lron & Steel

b) Others
Total segment profit/(loss) before lìnance costs,
exceptional items, unallocable expense/income and
tax
Finance costs

Unallocable corporate income/expense [net)
Profit/(loss) before tax and exceptional items
Exceptional items- income/(expense) (r'efer note 6J

Share of profit/(lossl of joint venture
Profit/(loss) before tax
Less: Tax expense [refer note 9)
ProfTt/(loss) after tax

Segment Results

Segment Revenue
aJ lron & Steel

b) Others

Sub Total
Less: Inter-segment Revenue

Segment Liabilities
a) Iron & Steel

b) Others
c) Unallocated
Total Liabiliries

Segment Assets
a) h'on & Steel

bl Othels
cJ Unallocated
Total Assets

LL,654.44 L2,374,26 10,960.86 1l^,654,44 10,960.85



Notes:

1. Jindal ITF Limited, subsidiary of the Company, had won an arbitral award allowing various claims to the tune of I 1,891.08 crores
plus interest and applicable taxes. During the fìnancial y ear 2019-20, the subsidiary had filed enforcement application under section
36 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, t996, for the execution of arbitral award being pronounced in favour of the subsidiary
whereas the customer had preferred appeal under Section 34 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act,7996, challenging the said arbitral
award. Both the aforesaid cases are presently sub-judice before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. As per interim relief granted by Hon'ble
High Court, the subsidiary received { 856.31 crores on submission ofbank guarantees. Based on the current status and the expert
legal advice received, the Company is expecting a favourable outcome which would cover all the investments, loans and advances
in Jindal ITF and consequently no adjustments have been made to the carrying values of loans and investments in the books of the
Company.

2, The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLTI, vide its order dated March 21, 2024,has approved the Composite Scheme of
Amalgamation ("the Scheme") of f indal Quality Tubular Limited ["JQTL"], jindal Tubular (lndia) Limited [.'JTIL") ["Subsidiaries") and Jindal
Fittings Limited ("JFL") with the Company, the appointed date being April 01, 2022. JQTL and |TIL were in the business of pipe
manufacturing and coating and JFL was in the business of manufacturing of Ductile lron fittings. Consequently, the Consolidated financial
statements ofthe Company, for quarter and year ended March 3t,2023 and quarter ended December 31, 2023have been restated based
on the audited financial statements of the Company to give effect to the business combination. For JQTL and JTIL, business combination
has been recorded by the Company as a coìnmon control transaction using the pooling of interest method (as prescribed in Appendix - C
to Ind AS 1.03J resulting into capital reserve of Ì 5.52 crores. For JFL using acquisition method in accordance with the Ind AS 103 - Business

Combination and the Scheme resulting into goodwill of { 61.05 crores.

3. The Hon'ble Hyderabad bench of NCLT vide its order dated March 31,2023, approved the resolution plan submitted by the
Company for Sathavahana Ispat Limited(SIL). The conditions precedents as per the said plan were achieved on April 26, 2023, by
virtue of this, SIL stands merged with the Company on the said date. 'l'he net cost to the Company for acquiring the assets net of
assumed liabilities is { 1,093.99 crores. As per Ind AS 103, the acquisition was accounted for in the books, using the acquisition
method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were measured at their fair values as on the acquisition date and the purchase
consideration was allocated to the net assets acquired. which resulted in recognizing a capital reserve oft 516.61 crores.

4. The company has sold 100% equity shares subsidiary Quality Iron and steel Limited leading to loss of control effective March 30,

2024, resulting in gain ofl 0.04 crores.

5. The consolidated financial results include the financials information of the step-down subsidiary, Derwent Sand SARL which was

under liquidation earlier. During the current quarter, the subsidiary is outside the liquidation process.

6. Exceptional itern fortheyearended March 31,,2023 represents the loss on sale of vessel in subsidiaryJindal ITF Limited.

7. The Board of Directors has recommended payment of dividend @ T 4 per equity share of T 2 each for the year ended March 31., 2024
aggregating to < L27.90 crores.

8. The Group has two reportable business segments i.e. Iron & Steel products and Others.

9. Tax expense are inclusive ofprior period tax adjustments.



10, The figures of the quarter ended March 3L,2024 and March 3L,2023 are the balancing figures between the audited fÍgures in respect
of the full financial year and the published unaudited year to date figures upto third quarter of the financial year which were subject to
limited review by the auditor,

11. These results are reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 7 , 2024.

By Order ofthe Board
FoT|INDAL SAW TIMITED

c,\t/
Sminuflndal

Managing Director
DIN:00005317

Place: New Delhl
Date: May 07,2024
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